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Global economic update: the root 
cause of the current crisis 
 

Part 1: Overview 

At the start of 2020 the world was facing a pandemic that had the capacity to upend the lives and livelihoods 
of billions. The collapse of global share markets was ultimately averted thanks to both the rapid intervention of 
central banks providing support to financial markets in the form of cheap money and liquidity, and 
governments, in the form of stimulus payments to workers and businesses. Just as the world was learning to 
live with the virus, the war in Ukraine began to unfold in all its technicolour horror, creating an entirely different 
economic crisis.  

To understand the root causes of the current crisis, we need to go back in time before the pandemic started. 
During this time the world was awash with cheap labour. Foreign workers on temporary visas readily filled 
unskilled roles. Companies offshored operations or outsourced roles to India, China and other South East 
Asian countries to take advantage of lower labour costs. This era of globalisation was arguably a windfall for 
both corporate profitability and humanity, by providing jobs and increasing the standard of living for more 
impoverished nations.  

The pandemic fundamentally changed all of this. The labour market is now very different. Staff shortages and 
wage pressures are almost universally evident for a multitude of reasons.  

First, at the onset of the pandemic, foreign workers made their way home fearing border closures would cut 
them off from their families. Many have not returned and may never return. Demand for unskilled workers, 
such as in hospitality and tourism in many developed nations far exceeds supply. Second, many companies 
found outsourced or offshore operations unreliable during the pandemic as COVID-19 forced staff, who were 
working overseas, into prolonged lockdowns without technology to work from home. This was exacerbated by 
supply chain disruptions that have prompted a wave of reshoring operations to improve control over the 
supply chain. Third, COVID-19 forced some workers, who either chose not to be vaccinated, or did not have 
access to vaccinations, to temporarily leave the workforce until the worst was over. Many have still not 
returned. Fourth, COVID-19 forced many countries to hit pause on their immigration programs. Fifth, the 
pandemic crossed over into the start of the retirement years for the baby boomer generation. This has seen 
an increase in early retirements for those who could afford to do so. The combination of these factors has led 
to labour shortages, putting upward pressure on wages for the first time in decades.  

The pandemic was also causing a whole range of other problems. Reopening the economy caused a wave of 
pent-up demand as consumers unleashed surplus savings. The resumption of manufacturing production lines 
however was not universal, resulting in extended delays in accessing componentry. As a result, the cost of 
shipping containers, freight, electrical components such as microchips, among other things, all jumped 
sharply.  

These factors were all evident well before the war in Ukraine started. Since then, cost pressures that had 
been building for 18 months, have ignited. Before the war, Russia supplied about a quarter of Europe’s oil and 
40%1 of its natural gas needs, so it is no surprise that energy prices have since soared. Food prices have also 

skyrocketed. Russia and Ukraine collectively supply around 28%2 of the world’s wheat, 26%2 of barley and 

over 60%2 of sunflower oil. Russia and Belarus also happen to be the world’s major supplier of fertiliser. The 

outcomes are now plain to see.  

In the United States, headline inflation in May was at a 40 year high at 8.6%3. Core inflation, that excludes 

volatile energy prices, was still above 6%3, more than triple the Federal Reserve’s target. In the Eurozone, 

inflation is running at 8.1%4, the highest since records began in 1997. Energy prices were up 39%4 on the 

prior corresponding period in May 2021, while food was up 7.5%4.  

                                                      

1 J. Horton, ‘Russia sanctions: Can the world cope without its oil and gas?’ BBC News, https://www.bbc.com/news/58888451, (accessed 
1 July 2022). 
2 ‘Ukraine War Has Put World's Food Security At Risk As Wheat, Fertiliser Supplies Are Hit’, Outlook India, 
https://www.outlookindia.com/international/ukraine-war-has-put-world-food-security-at-risk-as-wheat-fertiliser-supplies-are-hit-news-
192060, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
3 J. Bartash, ‘Rising rents, gas and food prices push U.S. inflation to 40-year high of 8.6%, CPI shows’, MarketWatch, 
https://www.marketwatch.com/story/coming-up-consumer-price-index-for-may-11654862886, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
4 ‘Euro area inflation up to 8.1%’, Eurostat, https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/documents/2995521/14636256/2-31052022-AP-
EN.pdf/3ba84e21-80e6-fc2f-6354-2b83b1ec5d35, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

https://www.bbc.com/news/58888451
https://www.outlookindia.com/international/ukraine-war-has-put-world-food-security-at-risk-as-wheat-fertiliser-supplies-are-hit-news-192060
https://www.outlookindia.com/international/ukraine-war-has-put-world-food-security-at-risk-as-wheat-fertiliser-supplies-are-hit-news-192060
https://www.marketwatch.com/story/coming-up-consumer-price-index-for-may-11654862886
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/documents/2995521/14636256/2-31052022-AP-EN.pdf/3ba84e21-80e6-fc2f-6354-2b83b1ec5d35
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/documents/2995521/14636256/2-31052022-AP-EN.pdf/3ba84e21-80e6-fc2f-6354-2b83b1ec5d35
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Faced with inflation outcomes not seen for over 40 years, central banks have been slow to react. But from 
Washington to Germany, they are now aggressively lifting interest rates to try and reduce demand and tame 
inflation.  

In June the US Federal Reserve increased its cash rate by 0.75% to 1.75%5, the largest single hike since 

1994. The average rate on a 30-year mortgage is near 6%6, double what it was a year ago. Similarly, the 

European Central Bank (ECB) has outlined plans to continuously raise rates from July in order to get inflation 
back within its 2% target. Failing to increase rates would only serve to devalue the Euro, increasing the cost 
of imported products and only adding to inflationary pressures.  

The problem is that interest rates are the bluntest of tools. By increasing the cost of money, they reduce 
demand for goods and services. It is hoped that this reduction will help alleviate price pressures without 
demand capitulating to the point where the economy goes into recession.  

Growth, that was already well below trend in China, is now clearly slowing across the world, including the US 
and Europe. Surging energy prices, higher food prices and higher interest rates are conspiring to reduce 
disposable incomes and dent consumer confidence. March quarter growth in the Eurozone slowed to 0.2% 
but is likely to have slowed further since then. In the US, the economy fell by 0.2% in the March quarter. While 
the US is expected to avoid a technical recession, households are clearly struggling with higher costs. Growth 

in the US over the year has been revised down to 1.7%7 from 2.6%, and in Europe to 2.8%8 from 3.7% just 

three months earlier.  

It is abundantly clear that demand is slowing, but the problem is that prices are not. This is because inflation 
has been driven by supply side shortages on necessities. Energy prices are high because supply is tight. 
Food prices are elevated because crops have been either destroyed or are unable to be brought through the 
war zones to market. This has been compounded by the shortage of fertilisers. Further, rent and the cost of 
accommodation (a significant component of the inflation index) has largely only increased.  

We are left in an uncomfortable reality where higher interest rates are unlikely to rapidly suppress price 
pressures. Inflation will inevitably stay higher for longer until the war in Ukraine ends and more supply of food 
and energy ultimately becomes available.  

Conclusion 

Central banks across the globe face the difficult prospect of trying to tame inflation with higher interest rates, 
without inducing a recession. Higher rates will reduce demand. The latest Gross domestic product (GDP) 
forecasts see growth slowing to stall speed across most major economies, but they will do little to resolve the 
underlying supply-side food and energy shortages that prevail. These are factors beyond the control of 
bankers. In the meantime, not only are households grappling with higher living costs and mortgage 
repayments, but heavily indebted sovereign nations are struggling with weaker currencies and higher interest 
rates making it more difficult to repay US denominated debts. This is a backdrop where the probability of a 
global recession is increasing rapidly.  

 

 

 

 

                                                      

5 J. Cox, ‘Fed hikes its benchmark interest rate by 0.75 percentage point, the biggest increase since 1994’, CNBC, 
https://www.cnbc.com/2022/06/15/fed-hikes-its-benchmark-interest-rate-by-three-quarters-of-a-point-the-biggest-increase-since-
1994.html, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
6 M. Strohm, ‘Current National Mortgage Rates: June 24, 2022–Mortgage Rates Fall’, Forbes Advisor 
https://www.forbes.com/advisor/mortgages/mortgage-rates-06-24-
22/#:~:text=The%20average%20rate%20on%20a,with%20an%20APR%20of%205.78%25, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
7 ‘The Conference Board Economic Forecast for the US Economy’, US Conference Board, https://www.conference-
board.org/research/us-forecast, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
8 ‘Eurosystem staff macroeconomic projections’ , European Central Bank’, 
https://www.ecb.europa.eu/pub/projections/html/ecb.projections202206_eurosystemstaff~2299e41f1e.en.html, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

https://www.cnbc.com/2022/06/15/fed-hikes-its-benchmark-interest-rate-by-three-quarters-of-a-point-the-biggest-increase-since-1994.html
https://www.cnbc.com/2022/06/15/fed-hikes-its-benchmark-interest-rate-by-three-quarters-of-a-point-the-biggest-increase-since-1994.html
https://www.forbes.com/advisor/mortgages/mortgage-rates-06-24-22/#:~:text=The%20average%20rate%20on%20a,with%20an%20APR%20of%205.78%25
https://www.forbes.com/advisor/mortgages/mortgage-rates-06-24-22/#:~:text=The%20average%20rate%20on%20a,with%20an%20APR%20of%205.78%25
https://www.conference-board.org/research/us-forecast
https://www.conference-board.org/research/us-forecast
https://www.ecb.europa.eu/pub/projections/html/ecb.projections202206_eurosystemstaff~2299e41f1e.en.html
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Part 2: Key economic indicators 

United States 

Economic snapshot Last reported result Comments 

Growth (GDP)9 

-1.5% (annualised) 

Q1’22 

The US economy contracted in the first quarter of 2022, 

following a strong 6.9% expansion in the previous 

quarter. GDP was adversely affected by a wider trade 

gap and a slower restocking of goods in stores and 

warehouses. 

Unemployment10 

3.6% May’22 The unemployment rate remained unchanged in May as 

notable job gains in leisure and hospitality, professional 

and business services, and transportation and 

warehousing offset a fall in employment levels in retail 

trade. 

Industrial 
production11 

0.2% m/m May’22 

5.8% y/y May’22 

Industrial production increased slightly in May, supported 

by both higher mining and utilities output. 

Manufacturing 
PMI12 

56.1 May’22 

58.6 Feb’22 

May’s manufacturing Purchasing Managers Index (PMI) 

reading of 56.1 continues to signal a manufacturing 

sector in expansion for a 24th successive month. 

Retail sales13 
-0.4% m/m May’22 

6.9% y/y May’22 

Retail sales remain strong on a yearly view although cost 

pressures are starting to emerge.  

Credit growth11 10.1% (annualised) 

Apr’22 

Credit increased at an annualised rate of 10.1% and 

stands at $4.57 trillion. 

Outlook 

The World Bank has cut its 2022 expected growth rate for the United States 
economy from 3.7% to 2.5%. This growth rate may come under further pressure 
as inflation remains stubbornly high and financial conditions continue to be 
aggressively tightened. 

 

Eurozone 

Economic snapshot Last reported result Comments 

Growth (GDP)14 

0.6% q/q Q1’22 

5.4% y/y Q1’22 

Growth rebounded in the first quarter as the reopening 

trade gathered momentum. We saw signs that it began to 

slow towards the end of the quarter as Russia invaded 

Ukraine and energy prices soared.  

Unemployment14 6.8% Apr’22 The unemployment rate remained unchanged in April and 

remains the lowest jobless rate on record. 

Industrial 
production14 

0.4% m/m Apr’22 

-2.0% y/y Apr’22 

Industrial production rose in April, underpinned by strong 

energy production.  

Manufacturing 
PMI15 

54.6 May’22 The Manufacturing PMI confirmed the manufacturing 

sector expanded for a 23rd successive month, albeit the 

rate has weakened over the past year. 

                                                      

9 US Department of Commerce, 'Bureau of Economic Analysis', 2022, https://www.bea.gov/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

10 US Department of Labor, 'Bureau of Labor Statistics', 2022, https://www.bls.gov/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

11 United States Federal Reserve, 2022, https://www.federalreserve.gov/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

12 Institute of Supply Management (ISM), 2022 https://www.ismworld.org/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

13 United States Census Bureau, 2022, https://www.census.gov/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

14 Eurostat, https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat 

15 IHS Markit, https://ihsmarkit.com/index.html 

https://www.ismworld.org/
https://www.census.gov/
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat
https://ihsmarkit.com/index.html
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Economic snapshot Last reported result Comments 

Retail sales14 
-1.3% m/m Apr’22 

3.9% y/y Apr’22 

Retail sales decreased in April, primarily impacted by lower 

food sales. 

Credit growth14 

6.0% y/y Apr’22 The annual growth rate of total credit to euro area 

residents decelerated to 6.0% in April, compared with 6.3% 

the previous month. The annual growth rate of credit to 

general government decreased to 9.3% in April from 10.1% 

in March, while the annual growth rate of credit to the 

private sector increased to 4.8% in April from 4.3% in 

March. 

Outlook 

According to the World Bank, growth in the Eurozone is projected to slow to 2.5% 

in 2022. The growth rate has been revised lower by 1.7 percentage points as the 

Russian-Ukraine war leads to higher energy prices, continued supply disruptions 

and tighter financial conditions. 

 

China 

Economic snapshot Last reported result Comments 

Growth (GDP)16 

1.3% q/q Q1’22 4.8% 

y/y Q1’22 

China’s economy expanded solidly in the first quarter of 

2022 but COVID-19 lockdowns across the country will 

impact the second quarter growth rate. 

Unemployment16 

6.7% Apr’22 The unemployment rate rose to a record high as big cities 

across the country were locked down. The youth 

unemployment rate continues to increase, and now stands 

at 18%. 

Industrial 
production16 

0.7% y/y May’22 Industrial production rose solidly in May as COVID-19 

restrictions eased in some major cities while mining 

production continued to rise. 

Manufacturing 
PMI17 

49.6 May’22 

50.2 Feb’22 

China’s manufacturing PMI strengthened in May but 

continues to signal an economy in contraction. 

Retail sales16 -6.7% y/y May’22 Sales continue to be affected by lockdowns across the 

nation.  

Fixed asset (urban) 
investment16 

6.2% y/y Jan-May’22 Fixed Asset Investment (FAI) remains reasonably solid 

over the first five months of 2022, supported by timely 

investment approvals by state planners.  

Outlook 

The World Bank has sharply lowered its 2022 expected growth rate for China from 

5.1% to 4.3%. We expect forecast growth rates to be further challenged should 

COVID-19 disruptions continue to impact production and disrupt supply chains. 

                                                      

16 National Bureau of Statistics of China, 'National Economy in the First Half Year Witnessed the Steady and Sound Growth Momentum 
Consolidated', 2021, http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/PressRelease/202107/t20210715_1819447.html, (accessed 1 July 2022).  

17 China Federation of Logistics and Purchasing, http://en.chinawuliu.com.cn/cflp-pmi/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

The Manufacturing PMI data is compiled by the China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing (CFLP) and the China Logistics Information 
Centre (CLIC), based on data collected by the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS). The Manufacturing PMI data is NOT the Caixin 
Manufacturing PMI. 

http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/PressRelease/202107/t20210715_1819447.html
http://en.chinawuliu.com.cn/cflp-pmi/
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Japan 

Economic snapshot Last reported result Comments 

Growth (GDP)18 

-0.5% (annualised) 

Q1’22 

The Japanese economy contracted by a lower-than-

expected 0.5% in the first quarter, as private consumption 

remained resilient. 

Unemployment19 

2.5% Apr’22 The unemployment rate fell to a two-year low in April, as 

recommended curbs on business activity were lifted for the 

first time since the onset of the COVID-19 crisis. 

Industrial 
production20 

-1.5% m/m Apr’22 

-4.9% y/y Apr’22 

Japan's industrial output fell 1.5% in April from the previous 

month, as supply chain disruptions caused by Chinese 

lockdowns impact the economy. 

Manufacturing 
PMI21 

53.3 May’22 

52.7 Feb’22 

The latest reading of 53.3 continues to signify an 

expanding manufacturing sector, despite a slowdown in 

new orders. 

Retail sales22 
2.9% y/y Apr’22 Japan’s retail sales rose strongly in April benefitting from 

the easing of COVID-19 restrictions.  

Outlook 

According to the World Bank, growth in Japan is forecast to be 1.7% in 2022, 

sharply lower than the Bank’s forecast of 2.9% in January. Whilst the Japanese 

economy should benefit from the reopening of international travel, weaker exports 

as a result of a deteriorating global growth outlook will impact Japan’s growth 

outcomes. 

 
By Martin Fowler,  

Partner | Pitcher Partners  
Sydney Wealth Management 

+61 2 8236 7776 
martin.fowler@pitcher.com.au 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      

18 Cabinet Office, 2022, https://www.cao.go.jp/index-e.html, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

19 Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications, 2022, https://www.soumu.go.jp/english/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

20 Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (METI), 2022, https://www.meti.go.jp/english/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

21 Jibun Bank and IHS Markit, 2022, https://www.markiteconomics.com/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

22 Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (METI), https://www.meti.go.jp/english    

https://www.cao.go.jp/index-e.html
https://www.soumu.go.jp/english/
https://www.meti.go.jp/english/
https://www.markiteconomics.com/
https://www.meti.go.jp/english
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Australian economic update: above-
trend growth and low consumer 
confidence 
 

Part 1: Overview 

Monetary policy 

The Reserve Bank of Australia (RBA) shifted its policy stance materially during the June quarter with two rate 
hikes of 0.25% and 0.50% to take the cash rate to 0.85%. This was despite wage inflation not yet reaching its 
pre-conditioned target of 3%, following confirmation of wage growth pressure from industry in its business 
liaison discussions. 

 

Key factors to its shift according to Governor Lowe included; 

• The economic recovery occurring at a speed greater than the RBA had anticipated, and 

• Inflation being too high (5% year-on-year to March 2022) with a belief that it would hit 7% by year-end 
(an increase of 1% on its earlier 6% forecast). 
 

It remains uncertain how far the RBA might go to curb inflation, but it is likely that the cash rate will rise to at 
least 2.5% based on recent guidance. The RBA believes that it can tighten further without causing a 
recession due to the financial strength of Australian households backed by stronger wage growth (though 
we’d note in aggregate this is lagging inflation) and high savings ($250bn relative to normal levels23) thanks to 
strong fiscal stimulus in response to the coronavirus pandemic since 2020.  

 Higher interest rates will: 

• Slow economic growth by reducing credit growth as borrowing becomes more costly. Higher 
mortgage rates reduce the propensity for households to spend.  

• Support the value of the Australian dollar, pressuring exporter earnings but supporting household 
purchases. 

• Increase returns for savers with term deposit and savings rates repricing higher. 

Growth 

The Australian economy has continued to grow above expectations since the start of the year. Despite media 
reports of impending gloom, leading indicators including the Markit Composite PMI, continue to show strength 
in both manufacturing and the services sectors. Hospitality in particular is benefiting from a broader “re-
opening trade” as spending shifts from goods to services. Business sentiment and investment intentions also 
remain above long-term averages24.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      

23 Westpac Economics Bulletin, ‘The Australian Economy to Grow by 5.5% in 2022’, Westpac, 
https://westpaciq.westpac.com.au/wibiqauthoring/_uploads/file/Economics/2022/2022-03/er20220308BullAustralianEconomyGrow.pdf, 
(accessed 1 July 2022). 
24 ‘Monthly Business Survey May 2022’, NAB, https://business.nab.com.au/monthly-business-survey-may-2022-54063/, (accessed 1 July 
2022). 

https://westpaciq.westpac.com.au/wibiqauthoring/_uploads/file/Economics/2022/2022-03/er20220308BullAustralianEconomyGrow.pdf
https://business.nab.com.au/monthly-business-survey-may-2022-54063/
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Annual growth in household spending by type of sector (Jan-20 to Apr-22) 

 

Nevertheless, while household spending has been elevated, consumer confidence has collapsed and now 
sits at its lowest level since August 2020 (when Victoria entered its “second wave” lockdown). The negative 
sentiment is a by-product of rising inflationary pressures, fears over higher interest rates and the broader 
impact on the economic outlook.  

High levels of savings are helping act as a buffer, but it is only a matter of time before discretionary spending 
starts to slow. Another hit to household spending will arrive in October when the fuel excise cut under the 
previous government is due to end. 

Inflation 

We see inflationary pressures persisting in Australia. The four main drivers at present are: 

• Fuel and electricity costs – driven by surge in energy prices and adverse weather conditions 
(increasing demand for heating). 

• Housing – mix of rising rents and higher costs for housing construction (new purchase costs up 
13.7% in the year to March 202225) as the industry continues to see commodity shortfalls and 
shortage of workers needed to address the backlog from the Commonwealth’s Homebuilder initiative. 

• Supply chain pressures – these remain elevated globally and are contributing to pressure on 
business logistics with more costs being passed on to end consumers.  

• Wage growth – a tighter labour market (falling unemployment) means fewer surplus workers 
available for businesses, putting upward pressure on wages to attract and retain staff. 

Importantly though, there remain some constraints on inflationary pressures here that are less evident in other 
countries. Wage growth in particular is not accelerating as strongly as the US, with Australian wages growing 
only 2.4% for the year to March 202226. News such as the recently agreed 5.2% increase to the minimum 
wage27 will play a part in pushing wages higher.  

The major change since the March quarter has been the escalation of gas price pressures particularly in the 
East Coast states (Western Australia benefits from less demand and a gas reservation policy). This has seen 

                                                      

25 Australian Bureau of Statistics, ‘ABS Table 7’ https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/price-indexes-and-inflation/consumer-price-
index-australia/latest-release#data-download, (accessed 1 July 2022). 
26 Australian Bureau of Statistics, ‘Wage Price Index, Australia’, 2022, https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/price-indexes-and-
inflation/wage-price-index-australia/latest-release, (accessed 1 July 2021). 
27 S. Pandey, ‘Australian Minimum Wage to rise by larger than expected 5.2%’, Bloomberg’, 
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2022-06-15/australian-minimum-wage-to-rise-by-larger-than-expected-5-2, (accessed 1 July 
2022). 
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https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/price-indexes-and-inflation/consumer-price-index-australia/latest-release#data-download
https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/price-indexes-and-inflation/wage-price-index-australia/latest-release
https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/price-indexes-and-inflation/wage-price-index-australia/latest-release
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2022-06-15/australian-minimum-wage-to-rise-by-larger-than-expected-5-2
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the Australian regulatory body (AEMO) directly intervene in electricity markets to ensure sufficient generation 
is maintained.  

Taken together, these form an outlook for materially higher inflation in the near term with the RBA predicting 
7% by the end of 2022. The extent that RBA rate hikes slow down this acceleration remains uncertain but is 
likely to be more acutely felt in 2023 after excess household savings are wound down. 

Conclusion 

Australia continues to track well in economic terms with above-trend growth likely to persist over the second 
half of 2022. The outlook beyond this is less clear. The drags of higher inflation, higher interest rates, limited 
government fiscal spending and weak consumer sentiment pose material challenges. We would expect these 
to weigh on growth in 2023 as household excess savings start to erode and global economic challenges 
feature more prominently.  

Upside risks for Australia include an uptick in Chinese economic stimulus (spurring resource demand and 
investment), the boost from business investment spending if it keeps in line with current plans and an earlier 
conclusion to the Russia-Ukraine conflict that should support lower energy prices. 

 

Part 2: Key economic indicators 

Indicator Last reported result Comments 

Growth (GDP)28 

0.8% q/q Q1’22 

3.3% y/y Q1’22 

The Australian economy continued to rebound after its third 

largest contraction on record in the third quarter of 2021, with 

a 3.4% rise in the December quarter followed by 0.8% growth 

in the first quarter of 2022. The solid reading was 

underpinned by household and government spending, 

following the easing of COVID-19 restrictions. 

12-month outlook: 

The economy is likely to continue to grow moderately over the 

second half of the year before persistent inflation, higher 

interest rates, and lower disposable incomes precipitate a 

slowdown in 2023. 

Retail trade28 

0.9% m/m Apr’22 

9.6% y/y Apr’22 

Retail trade remained sold in April, underpinned by turnover 

at cafes, restaurants and takeaway food outlets (19% higher 

than pre-pandemic levels). 

12-month outlook: 

Retail sales are likely to remain solid in the near term but face 

headwinds in 2023 as rate rises impact discretionary 

spending. 

Manufacturing 
PMI29 

52.4 May’22 

53.2 Feb’22 

The Australian Industry Group (AIG) stated that the 

Performance of Manufacturing Index (PMI) declined 6.1 

points over the month and continues to indicate an expanding 

manufacturing sector. 

12-month outlook: 

The manufacturing sector should continue to remain solid, but 

risks remain around price inflation, labour shortages and 

supply-chain disruptions. 

Business 
investment 
(Private New 
Capital 
Expenditure)28 

-0.3% q/q Q1’22 

4.5% y/y Q1’22 

Private new capital expenditure declined over the quarter as 

spending on building and structures fell by 1.3%. 

12-month outlook: 

The outlook for business investment is likely to remain 

supported by a strong infrastructure pipeline, although the 

uncertain global economic landscape tempers optimism. 

Unemployment28 3.9% Apr’22 The unemployment rate remained unchanged in April as 

4,000 individuals were added to the workforce. 

                                                      

28 Australian Bureau of Statistics, 2022, https://www.abs.gov.au, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

29 Australian Industry Group, ‘Performance of Manufacturing Index (PMI)’, 2022, https://www.aigroup.com.au/, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

https://www.abs.gov.au/
https://www.aigroup.com.au/
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Indicator Last reported result Comments 

12-month outlook: 
Over the remainder of 2022, the unemployment rate is likely 
to rise slightly from current levels as interest rate rises cloud 
the domestic outlook. 

Inflation28 and 
interest rates 

Inflation: 

2.1% q/q Q1’22 

5.1% y/y Q1’22 

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) rose solidly in the first 

quarter, underpinned by higher dwelling construction costs 

and fuel prices.  

Interest rates: 

0.85% Cash Rate 

Jun’22 

The RBA raised the cash rate by a larger than expected 
0.50% in June on expectation that inflation will rise to 7% by 
the end of the year. 

12-month outlook: 

Inflation risks are likely to continue to increase as a result of 
persistent supply-side bottlenecks and energy price inflation. 
With consistent inflation readings above the RBA’s upper 
bound likely to continue, further interest rate rises are 
expected over the remainder of the year. 

Australian 
Dollar 

AU$1 = US$0.69 The Australian Dollar declined over the quarter as central 

banks across the globe tightened interest rates in a bid to 

reign in soaring inflation. Fears of a slowing global economy 

have also acted as a headwind, partially offset by the highest 

terms of trade on record.  

12-month outlook: 

We expect the Australian dollar (AUD) to remain supported 

around current levels as commodity prices remain strong by 

historical standards, notwithstanding risks to the global 

economic outlook and higher relative interest rates in the 

United States. 

 

 

By Cameron Curko,  
Head of Macroeconomics  

& Strategy | Pitcher Partners  
Sydney Wealth Management 

+61 2 9228 2415 
cameron.curko@pitcher.com.au 
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Australian equities update: 
sharemarket recommendations 
 

Overview 

The S&P/ASX 200 Total Return Index returned -11.9% over the three months and -6.5% over the year to 30 
June 2022. 

S&P/ASX 200 Accumulation Index (Jun-21 to Jun-22). 

 

 
Source: S&P/ASX. 

Outlook 

Recommendation: Maintain neutral. 

The Australian sharemarket has been volatile and is around 7.5% lower (on a total return basis) this calendar 
year. The ASX200 index fell 10% in a two-week period in June as a result of high inflation readings and 
hawkish comments from central banks (notably the Federal Reserve, ECB and RBA) that have raised the 
possibility of a global recession. The ongoing war in Ukraine and sanctions on Russia, and the associated 
supply-side constraints are likely to continue to pressure inflation, in the absence of further interest rate rises. 

Against this gloomy backdrop it is difficult to form a constructive view on Australian equities but there are 
several factors that remain supportive. First, the recent correction has served to compress valuations to more 
attractive levels. Second, the domestic economy remains near full employment. A strong labour market, pent 
up demand and household savings boosted by stimulus measures should continue to support consumer 
spending, as long as rates don’t move too high. Third, Australian coal, iron ore and liquified natural gas 
exporters should continue to benefit from the supply-side constraints caused by the pandemic and the war in 
Ukraine. Fourth, there is a reasonable probability that inflation could peak over the next six months that could 
avert more damaging outcomes.  

In conclusion, risks have become more evenly balanced. While we expect the economy to slow as rates move 
higher, valuations have already become more attractive to accommodate this outlook. Accordingly, we 
maintain our neutral recommendation on the Australian sharemarket. 
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Sector view 

Our outlook for some of the major sectors of the S&P/ASX 200 is as follows: 

 

Banks 

Recommendation: Retain neutral. 

After a strong start to the year, the banking sector has been sold off aggressively in June on concerns that 
larger and faster interest rate rises will lead to a sharp increase in defaults and, ultimately, losses. During the 
first half of the year banks reported solid H1FY22 financial results. Whilst Net Interest Margins (NIM’s) 
declined over the half (and indeed the year) for all majors, as a result of fierce competition for loans and a 
continued customer switch into lower margin fixed-rate loans, cash earnings benefited from writebacks of 
large loan loss provisions recorded in the prior period. Ambitious cost-out programmes that were announced 
last year were largely abandoned as a result of significant cost headwinds, namely a result of inflation, higher 
investment spending and increased regulatory costs. 

Whilst profitability is likely to remain solid in the short-term, banks remain vulnerable to the excessive debt 
held in the housing sector, which is at an inflection point. Prices have boomed since the depths of the COVID-
19 crisis as a result of interest rates being driven to historic lows, coupled with an aggregate undersupply of 
residential housing. Developers have taken advantage of these ideal conditions in the past two years, 
spurring record dwelling construction. Further, investors have also been attracted to the property market, 
speculating on further asset price gains, aided by the additional benefit of income tax relief through negative 
gearing and a higher borrowing capacity. Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) data for April shows that, while 
housing loans have moderated over the month, they still comprise three-quarters of new loans written by 
banks30. Specifically, total investor loans for the month remain some 37% higher than April 2021. 

The slowdown in activity in residential property has been more pronounced for apartments, where supply 
appears to have exceeded available demand. Banks have tightened lending criteria as directed by the 
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA), in an effort to reign-in property speculation, displaying the 
susceptibility of the banks to the effects of rising defaults. In June, banks started to lower the Debt-to-Income 
(DTI) limit, which effectively reduces the maximum amount applicants can borrow. Furthermore, the 2021 
Demographics Housing Affordability Survey reported that the median multiple of house prices to household 
income was 8.0 times in Australia (inflated by multiples of 15.3 times in Sydney and 12.1 times in Melbourne). 
These figures compare to multiples of 5.0 times and 5.1 times for the US and UK respectively31. These 
statistics give credence to critics who claim that the housing boom is a debt-fuelled bubble.  

At this stage, we do not expect any sharp increase in bad debts from housing loan defaults unless interest 
rates or unemployment levels both rise sharply, as borrowers have accumulated large cash buffers. Whilst the 
risk of the latter appears low in the short term (assuming no significant deterioration in domestic economic 
conditions), significant interest rate rises heighten the risk of significant impairments. On the flip side, the 
majority of current loans are fixed, with many of these not maturing until 2024. Dividends are attractive and 
sustainable, albeit with little earnings growth. On balance, valuations in the sector remain reasonable, 
notwithstanding the challenges. We maintain our neutral recommendation, noting the rising risks within the 
sector are offset by attractive fully franked dividends which appear sustainable (in the absence of a significant 
uptick in bad loans). 

 

Resources 

Recommendation: Maintain neutral. 

Commodity prices have shown strength over the past year with supply being impacted by COVID-19 related 
disruptions and exacerbated by the war in Ukraine. The outlook, however, has deteriorated as the global 
economy starts to slow.  

The World Bank in January forecasted global growth to fall from 5.7% in 2021 to 4.1% in 2022. The forecast 
in the World Bank’s latest Global Economic Prospects has now been further downgraded to 2.9%32. China 
accounts for approximately half of global commodity consumption, so a further weakening in demand from the 
Asian behemoth would be a harbinger to lower commodity prices. Whilst Chinese demand remains solid, 

                                                      

30 ‘Lending Indicators’, ABS, https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/finance/lending-indicators/latest-release, (accessed 1 July 2022).  
31 ‘Demographia International Housing Affordability 2022 Edition’, Urban Reform Institute’, http://www.demographia.com/dhi.pdf, 
(accessed 1 July 2022). 
32 ‘Stagflation Risk Rises Amid Sharp Slowdown in Growth, June 2022’, The World Bank, https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-
release/2022/06/07/stagflation-risk-rises-amid-sharp-slowdown-in-growth-energy-
markets#:~:text=Global%20growth%20is%20expected%20to,that%20was%20anticipated%20in%20January, (accessed 1 July 2022). 

https://www.abs.gov.au/statistics/economy/finance/lending-indicators/latest-release
http://www.demographia.com/dhi.pdf
https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release/2022/06/07/stagflation-risk-rises-amid-sharp-slowdown-in-growth-energy-markets#:~:text=Global%20growth%20is%20expected%20to,that%20was%20anticipated%20in%20January
https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release/2022/06/07/stagflation-risk-rises-amid-sharp-slowdown-in-growth-energy-markets#:~:text=Global%20growth%20is%20expected%20to,that%20was%20anticipated%20in%20January
https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release/2022/06/07/stagflation-risk-rises-amid-sharp-slowdown-in-growth-energy-markets#:~:text=Global%20growth%20is%20expected%20to,that%20was%20anticipated%20in%20January
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much of this demand is due to rebuilding depleted stockpiles, where inventories are at historically low levels 
across most commodities. China’s and indeed global growth rates are expected to further be challenged 
should COVID-19 disruptions continue to impact production and disrupt supply chains, and tighter monetary 
policy to curb high inflation levels. A more pronounced slowdown in China will inevitably flow through to a 
reduction in demand for Australian resources, which is likely to lead to lower domestic production and 
investment intentions. In an effort to minimise the fallout from such a slowdown, the Chinese Authorities have 
recently flagged their willingness to stabilise financial markets and manage property risks, should the need 
arise. Over the longer term, however, demand for steel and copper as a result of rising urbanisation rates 
across the world is expected to remain solid. 

Cost pressures within the resources sector are continuing to persist as labour, freight and other input costs 
have risen. Our preferences within this sector remain the larger, well-diversified miners. Due to their healthy 
balance sheets and strong cashflows (notwithstanding volatile commodity prices), some of these companies 
have the ability to declare buybacks should the weakening of share prices persist through the second half of 
2022. 

 

Retail 

Recommendation: Retain neutral. 

Share prices across the retail sector have fallen by 14.3% over the quarter, buffeted by cost pressures, 
including increased raw material, commodity, shipping and labour costs and falling consumer confidence. The 
Westpac-Melbourne Institute Index of Consumer Sentiment33 fell 4.5% in June to 86.4 as concerns around 
inflation and interest rates begin to affect spending patterns. The Index is now at levels only seen during the 
Global Financial Crisis and at the height of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Despite the sharp fall in consumer confidence, retail sales have risen 9.6% over the past year, underpinned 
by stronger food sales, with turnover at cafes, restaurants and takeaway food outlets now 19% higher than 
pre-pandemic levels. Markets, however, are forward-looking and we would expect retailers to face headwinds 
as interest rate rises impact discretionary spending, with more disposable income being diverted into 
servicing housing debt and essential items like petrol, electricity, gas and food. Nevertheless, in our view 
valuations have become attractive after the recent sell-off and we therefore maintain a neutral 
recommendation for this sector. 

 

Australian Real Estate Investment Trusts (AREITs) 

Recommendation: Upgrade to overweight. 

The AREIT universe has seen a substantial selloff in 2022, underperforming the broader market index. Part of 
this is driven by the rise in interest rates and bond yields following the RBA rate hikes. AREITs are often 
treated as bond substitutes due to their high distribution yields. As such, when bond yields rise, we typically 
see weakness in AREIT prices as they are now a less attractive alternative and see investors retreat from 
them.  

On balance, the selloff has made AREIT valuations substantially more attractive. Most AREITs are trading at 
a discount to net tangible assets (NTA). NTAs may fall due to a drop in property valuations from the higher 
interest rate regime we are now in. However, prices more than reflect a substantial decline in property values. 
In addition, most AREITs offer a measure of inflation protection not easily found elsewhere via the value of 
the properties themselves, because in a higher inflation environment it costs more to replace these assets, 
supporting the value of existing properties. Most AREITs also have a measure of inflation protection due to 
rents automatically increasing with inflation as part of lease agreements. Lastly, unlike the global financial 
crisis experience, the sector carries substantially lower leverage, so there should be less need for the 
emergency capital raisings of that period that damaged investor returns by diluting their positions.  

Accordingly, due to attractive valuations and the potential for inflation protection, we are moving our view on 
AREITs from neutral to overweight.  

AREIT sub-sector outlook 

The retail sector has been underpinned by strong food sales but there are continued signs that discretionary 
spending is beginning to wane. Consumer confidence is weaker on expectations of house price declines and 

                                                      

33 Westpac Bulletin, ‘Inflation and rate hikes drag sentiments towards historic lows’, Westpac, 
https://www.westpac.com.au/content/dam/public/wbc/documents/pdf/aw/economics-research/er20220615BullConsumerSentiment.pdf, 
(accessed 1 July 2022). 
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sharp increases in interest rates. This is likely to translate to weaker retail sales over the next year that will 
limit earnings growth for landlords. 

The office sub-sector has only partially recovered from the carnage inflicted on it at the start of the pandemic. 
Persistent lockdowns have seen many workers adopt a more flexible workplace arrangement on a more 
permanent basis. This has resulted in many businesses desiring a smaller footprint, either by renegotiating 
their lease on more favourable terms on expiry, or sub-leasing part of the premises to third parties. Vacancy 
rates are also high with limited signs of relief in prime office sites across both Sydney and Melbourne. 

 

Prime Office Vacancy Rates by city (Sep-06 to Mar-22) 

 

The residential sub-sector is likely to see a further unwinding of tailwinds that supported it during the recovery 
from the pandemic. Interest rates have begun to normalise, and lenders have tightened borrowing criteria, 
which is likely to lead to fewer new loans and a lower capacity to borrow. Potential house price falls should be 
partially mitigated by the resumption of immigration, which would see a new cohort of buyers re-enter the 
market. 

The industrial sub-sector continues to benefit from solid investor demand, notwithstanding increased 
construction costs and maintenance expenses. Whilst capitalisation rates and vacancy rates are likely to rise 
from current historical lows, expected increases in e-commerce penetration are likely to sustain demand for 
warehouse and logistics space over the medium term.  

 

By Dr. Riccardo Biondini,  
Investment Analyst | Pitcher Partners  

Sydney Wealth Management 
+61 2 8236 7856 

riccardo.biondini@pitcher.com.au 
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International equities update: key 
drivers of the earnings outlook 
 

Overview 

The MSCI World (ex-Australia) Gross Total Return Index (AUD) returned -8.3% over the three months and -
6.1% over the year to 30 June 2022. 

MSCI World excluding Australia Gross Total Return Index (Jun-21 to Jun-22) 

 

Source: MSCI. 

 

Outlook 

The earnings outlook has softened further over the past quarter. Key drivers have been: 

• Stronger-than-expected rate hiking by central banks led by the Federal Reserve in the US 
(weakening equity valuations); 

• Heightened recession risks; and 

• Overestimation of demand leading to an inventory overhang. Companies face the choice of holding 
back inventory (incurring storage costs) or selling now at a discount (losing margin). Either way profits 
are likely to fall.  

Over the next 12 months we expect corporate earnings growth to moderate. Rising inflation and interest rates 
will weigh on overall business profits. This can be illustrated in the chart below that compares new orders for 
the manufacturing sector against US corporate profit growth. The historical trend clearly shows a decline in 
new orders, as is currently occurring, typically precedes a decline in earnings. This suggests consensus 
estimates will be revised downwards given this trend.  
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US manufacturing New Orders (6M average) vs US earnings growth (Jul-03 to May-22) 

 

Source: Bloomberg. 

 

The potential downgrade cycle can be seen in the chart below. This shows that analyst downgrades (blue line 
falling) tend to occur well after earnings (black line) start to fall.  

 

1-year forward expected vs actual earnings per share (Jun-97 to Jun-22) 

 

Source: S&P/ASX. 

 

One material factor offering relief to investors is that the continued correction in global equities now sees 
valuations trade at more reasonable levels. While we are cautious on the near-term earnings outlook from a 
longer-term perspective, these are now presenting attractive entry-points to build market exposure. This is the 
case across global equity markets given the breadth of the selloff.  
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1-year Forward Price: Earnings (PE) ratios for major equity markets (Jun-05 to Jun-22) 

 

Following recent weakness, the US is looking increasingly undervalued with potential upside ranging from 4% 
to 13%. The US accounts for the vast majority of total market value in global equities (68.3% as of 31 May), 
so this upside scenario suggests now is the time to begin building additional international equity exposure.  

Accordingly, while we remain cautious on earnings growth, the shift in valuations sees us move from 
underweight to neutral for international equities.  

 

Valuations 

In the United States, operating earnings for S&P 500 companies are currently expected to rise by 10.5% in 
2022 and 9% in 2023. Assuming an 8% growth rate in 2024 and conventional long-term multiples, we 
estimate that the United States sharemarket (as measured by the S&P500) is overvalued by 4% in the near-
term and undervalued by 13% over the medium-term. 

2021 calendar year 
forecast 

EPS earnings 
estimates (US$) 

S&P 500 fair value 
estimate 

Upside/(downside) 
S&P 500 = X 

Consensus 227.9 3646 -4% 

If 10% below 209.6 3354 -11% 

If 10% above 226.4 3622 -4% 

2022 calendar year 
forecast 

EPS earnings 
estimates (US$) 

S&P 500 fair value 
estimate 

Upside/(downside) 
S&P 500 = X 

Consensus 248.4 3975 +5% 

If 10% below 228.5 3657 -3% 

If 10% above 246.8 3949 +4% 

2023 calendar year 
forecast 

EPS earnings 
estimates (US$) 

S&P 500 fair value 
estimate 

Upside/(downside) 
S&P 500 = X 

Consensus 268.3 4293 +13% 

If 10% below 246.8 3949 +4% 

If 10% above 266.6 4265 +13% 

Source: Bloomberg consensus estimates for 2022 and 2023 as of 29 June 2022. 2024 assumes a growth rate of 8%34. 

                                                      

34 2024 growth rate assumed to be 6.3%, the long term growth rate for the S&P500 in the period 1991 to 2021 (inclusive). 
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In contrast, forward Price-to-Earnings (P/E) multiples broadly remain either below or in-line with longer-term 

averages in most other major markets, as follows: 

 

Region Forward PE 15-year Average 
Forward PE 

Potential 
upside/downside 

All Country World (ex-US) 11.7x 13.0x +11.3% 

Australia 12.8x 14.8x +15.3% 

Europe 11.7x 13.1x +11.8% 

Emerging markets 11.2x 11.6x +3.6% 

Japan 12.3x 14.2x +15.5% 

UK 10.3x 12.4x +20.4% 

China 12.3x 11.6x -5.1% 

Source: Bloomberg. 

 

Conclusion 

Recommendation: Move from underweight to neutral. 

Although the global economic outlook remains challenging with growth slowing in the wake of elevated global 
inflation, valuation multiples (including price to earnings and price to book) have compressed over recent 
months and most major share markets are now trading below their long-term averages. Historically, when 
markets are cheaper than average on a valuation basis this has typically proven to be a good time to increase 
exposure to equities. We acknowledge however that corporate profits are likely to slow and so the probability 
of earnings downgrades in coming months is high. With this in mind, we expect market sentiment to remain 
subdued and trading conditions to be choppy over the near-term. Nevertheless, we would argue that value 
has emerged considering valuations on a through-the-cycle basis and accordingly upgrade our 
recommendation from underweight to neutral. 

 

 

By Cameron Curko,  
Head of Macroeconomics  

& Strategy | Pitcher Partners  
Sydney Wealth Management 

+61 2 9228 2415 
cameron.curko@pitcher.com.au 
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